MINUTES of the meeting of the **SURREY LOCAL OUTBREAK ENGAGEMENT BOARD** held at 2.00 pm on 19 November 2021, remotely via Microsoft Teams.

These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Board at its next meeting.

Members:

(*Present)

Joanna Killian

Tim Oliver

- * Ruth Hutchinson
- * Sinead Mooney (Chairman)
- * Clare Curran
- * Karen Brimacombe

Annie Righton

- * Cllr Mark Brunt (Vice-Chairman)
- * Cllr Chris Sadler
- * Dr Charlotte Canniff

Sue Sjuve

Dr Pramit Patel

Gavin Stephens

Lisa Townsend

Andrew Lloyd

Louise Punter

* Rebecca Pritchard

32/21 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE [Item 1]

Apologies were received from Andrew Lloyd and Gavin Stephens.

33/21 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 2 SEPTEMBER 2021 [Item 2]

The minutes were agreed as a true record of the meeting.

34/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]

There were none.

35/21 INFORMAL QUESTION TIME [Item 4]

a Members' Questions [Item 4a]

None received.

b Public Questions [Item 4b]

None received.

36/21 ACTION TRACKER [Item 5]

Witnesses:

Dr Charlotte Keeble - Covid Vaccination Programme Director, Surrey Heartlands Integrated Care System

Key points raised in the discussion:

- 1. The Chairman requested an update on the one outstanding action A19/21.
 - In response the Covid Vaccination Programme Director (Surrey Heartlands ICS) explained that she would provide an update on the Covid-19 Vaccination Programme within item 8: Surrey Covid-19 Local Outbreak Management Plan.
- 2. The Chairman highlighted the inclusion of a detailed update Appendix 1 the response to action A21/21.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the Board reviewed its Action Tracker.
 - Action A19/21 to be marked as completed.

Actions/further information to be provided:

None.

37/21 COVID-19 SURVEILLANCE UPDATE [Item 6]

Witnesses:

Dr Naheed Rana - Public Health Consultant, Surrey County Council Ruth Hutchinson - Director of Public Health, Surrey County Council

Key points raised in the discussion:

- 1. The Public Health Consultant (SCC) noted:
 - the Covid-19 daily monitoring, intelligence and surveillance information; reviewing triggers and escalations, and the epidemiology and situational reports.
 - the epi curve of Covid-19 cases in Surrey whereby there were 150,651 cases in total up to 9 November 2021, cases continued to be monitored and the graph showed the number of cases as well as the tracking of the seven-day averages and the impact of the three lockdowns and the Government's roadmap culminating in all restrictions eased.
 - a graph showing the Covid-19 cases in Surrey between 15 June 15
 November 2021 where cases rose in conjunction with start of the school
 term in September and fell in conjunction with the October half term,
 rising post half term; the school age population group were driving
 infection rates.
 - the number of cases and rates per 100,000 population in the most recent fourteen-day period 2-15 November 2021 and detailed the most recent seven-day period 9-15 November 2021 where the rate for Surrey was 464.2 per 100,000 population or 5,570 cases - which was above the England and South East rates.
 - Tandridge, Elmbridge and Mole Valley had the highest rankings compared with nationally and in Surrey, Tandridge's rate in the most recent seven-day period was 600.8 per 100,000 population compared to Woking at 370.4 per 100,000 population.
 - the ranking of seven-day case rate for Lower-tier local authorities in England, 9-15 November 2021, Elmbridge and Tandridge were positioned at ninth and tenth.

- that the number and distribution of cases fluctuated weekly, there were agreed actions and notifications to tackle the rates in Surrey - noting the work of the Communications team (SCC), colleagues involved in testing and vaccinations, and support provided by other partners such as Surrey's borough and district councils.
- that the publicly available infographic 'Surrey Covid-19 Summary: Cases and Rates' was updated on Tuesdays and Thursdays and the recent infographic indicated an increasing trajectory with 800 cases per day on average.
- the publicly available weekly Friday intelligence summary, keeping Members and residents regularly informed.
- that the Delta Plus variant that was currently in the whole of the UK, although at low numbers in Surrey and Delta remained the dominant variant in the UK.
- the Covid-19 cases per 100,000 by age group in Surrey between 14
 October-6 November 2021 shown through a heat map, highlighting an
 increase in cases for school age groups or 10-19 year olds which was
 consistent in most of the boroughs and districts and an increase in
 cases in 40 to 49 year olds; the slight increase in 60 plus year olds had
 stabilised.
- a heat map of Surrey and surrounding areas: weekly case rates per 100,000 population by local authority between 5 October-15 November 2021; the fluctuation of cases was shown and culminated in the current high rates.
- there had been a slow but not significant increase in hospital admissions.
- that vaccination uptake across Surrey was good, where there was lower uptake the data - including IMD (Index of Multiple Deprivation) deciles was triangulated with cases and was shared across response groups and district and borough colleagues to ensure targeted actions.
- the cases, admissions and deaths in Surrey were closely tracked; there was nothing significant to report.
- the next steps which were to continue with the engagement and escalation processes, to closely monitor the data and to work with partners to support communication and to manage outbreaks.
- 2. Referring to the ranking of seven-day case rates for lower-tier local authorities in England for the most recent week, a Board member queried what London was doing now as it was ranked at the bottom half of the scale with lower infection rates compared to being at the top end of the scale throughout the pandemic.
 - In response, the Public Health Consultant (SCC) explained that there were different hypotheses such as the emergence of the Alpha variant in London before other areas which could mean a level of acquired immunity to the dominant Delta variant, noting that the vaccination rates in London were not higher than in Surrey, population behaviour and reporting rates might be a factor and noted the excellent communications campaigns across London.
 - The Director of Public Health (SCC) provided assurance in noting that Surrey was working with regional colleagues including with London, theorising that the shift in rates was possibly due to a combination of reasons as noted above and that there was no clear answer.
- 3. The Board member added that as the large proportion of Surrey's positive cases were in school-age children, asked whether there was data on the compliance of rapid lateral flow testing in schools both in Surrey and London.

 In response, the Public Health Consultant (SCC) commented that Surrey was working closely with London colleagues and those respective London areas did not appear to be doing anything different to Surrey.

RESOLVED:

The Board noted the verbal update and presentation.

Actions/further information to be provided:

None.

38/21 COVID-19 COMMUNICATIONS PLAN UPDATE [Item 7]

Witnesses:

Abi Pope - Senior Communications Manager - COVID-19 Communications Lead, Surrey County Council

Ruth Hutchinson - Director of Public Health, Surrey County Council

Key points raised in the discussion:

- The Senior Communications Manager COVID-19 Communications Lead (SCC) noted:
 - that she would be providing a deeper dive into youth engagement in Surrey which was more important than ever due to the high rates in school-age children.
 - that back in 2020 early on in the pandemic there were high rates of Covid-19 in young people but there were no existing channels within the Council to reach young people, who were not following local government channels on any platform so the Council needed to find a way to reach them.
 - the Council therefore held focus groups with young people from Surrey and undertook in-depth insight work, findings included 73% of those young people surveyed had broken Covid guidelines and the messaging was not reaching their digital spaces and they felt scapegoated.
 - however, peer-to-peer conversations and relatable stories were helpful
 and so the Council partnered with Livity a youth specialist agency to
 create the Soon.Surrey Instagram channel with posts from influencers
 each month highlighting the Council's strategic priorities around Covid19 in a relatable and creative way.
 - since April 2021 Soon.Surrey had reached 398,000 Instagram users and had 633 followers.
 - the number one performing post on Soon.Surrey around mental health and videos across Soon.Surrey had 3 million views.
 - Soon. Surrey reels were effective with one receiving 4.252 views.
 - the Soon.Surrey channel also looks beyond Covid-19 to content on mental health and resilience, Black History Month, White Ribbon Day and the Surrey Countryside Code.
 - in addition to peer-to-peer organic content, Soon.Surrey was used as a paid platform, commissioning content such as Fiaa's vaccination story, and content for 12 to 15 year olds on getting the Covid-19 vaccine; in total paid Instagram posts had been see over 2 million times.

- another new channel used by the Council was Snapchat which like Instagram and Facebook could be targeted by age and geography -64% of 16-24 year olds used Snapchat.
- Snapchat was used as a paid advertising channel and the advertisements created were based on up to date data provided by the Public Health team (SCC).
- an area addressed on Snapchat was festival season providing key messaging in line with public health guidance, another area was on promoting vaccination uptake in areas where young people may not be getting the vaccination as much as others, another area included Covid-19 testing for young men 'you wouldn't forget your kit' and another area was on fear of missing out 'FOMO'.
- in total the Council's Snapchat advertisements received over 8 million views over 29,000 swipe ups and 273,000 video views; the top performing advertisement was on FOMO receiving over 2 million views followed by the advertisement on festival season.
- another new channel used by the Council was radio advertisements on digital devices, 50% of UK homes had smart speakers and 63% of homes have a DAB device; the Council used In Stream which could be targeted by age and geography and the radio advertisements were heard 294,000 times reaching 37,000 people and the Kiss stations were the most effective in Surrey.
- TikTok as a channel was a challenge as it could not be geo-targeted at a local level, although that was changing in London and Manchester.
- there was a large amount of mis- and dis- information on vaccinations on TikTok and the 12 to 15 year old cohort relied heavily on the platform for information.
- to combat the above issues, the Council therefore teamed up and pooled money with ten other councils through the Council Advertising Network (CAN) to saturate TikTok with vaccination content to 'socially norm' vaccinations; the vaccine advertisements were seen over 11 million times and reached over 3 million people, and had 900,000 interactions.
- the Council also worked with CAN on a microsite called EverythingCovid.info, information was co-created by young people, included influencer content, FAQs and links to book vaccinations and tests, as well as an advertisement by a young doctor on common myths - in the first few weeks the site was launched it had been seen over 1 million times and within the first few days the site led to 290 vaccines being booked.
- two out of five users browse the microsite extensively, engagement was high and the microsite was supported through a programmatic advertising campaign through CAN.
- whilst the microsite was aimed at 12 to 15 year olds, work was done
 with parents too, the microsite used influencer content that was geotargeted to Surrey on social media channels and on apps and websites.
- that all the channels and tactics used to reach young people were based on data on the consumption of media in that age group, the Communications team (SCC) confident that the Council had reached a large number of young people in Surrey.
- 2. The Chairman praised the presentation, welcoming the new channels and tangible benefits and noted that paid posts were a useful tool to continue to use.

- 3. The Director of Public Health (SCC) noted that communications based on data and intelligence had been essential throughout the pandemic. The dynamic and rapid approach taken by the Communications team (SCC) to respond to new situations arising and changes in rates was vital.
 - The Director of Public Health (SCC) added that the lessons learned, and tools used would be transferable in other public health messaging to young people around sexual health and physical activity.

RESOLVED:

That the Board noted the activity outlined in the report.

Actions/further information to be provided:

None.

39/21 SURREY COVID-19 LOCAL OUTBREAK MANAGEMENT PLAN [Item 8]

Witnesses:

Ruth Hutchinson - Director of Public Health, Surrey County Council Dr Charlotte Keeble - Covid Vaccination Programme Director, Surrey Heartlands Integrated Care System

Jane Lovatt - External Testing Cell Lead, Surrey Heartlands Clinical Commissioning Group and Surrey County Council

Naomi Grieve - Test and Trace Manager, Surrey County Council Adam Letts - Public Health Lead, Surrey County Council Alison Mason - Senior Public Health Lead, Surrey County Council Rebecca Pritchard - Chief Executive Officer, Surrey Care Association Yazmin Castillo Munoz de Hodgson - Project Support Officer, Surrey County Council

Key points raised in the discussion:

National and Local Update: Covid-19 Response: Autumn and Winter Plan / LOMP

- 1. The Director of Public Health (SCC) noted:
 - that since the LOEB last met the COVID-19 Response: Autumn and Winter Plan 2021 was published in mid-September and was the overarching national policy consisting of Plan A and Plan B, and signalled a shift coming out of lockdown.
 - Plan A: is the current national policy which outlined a comprehensive approach consisting of five areas to manage Covid-19 over autumn and winter 2021/22 through:
 - 'building our defences through pharmaceutical interventions' such as vaccines;
 - identifying and isolating positive cases to limit transmission' through testing;
 - 'supporting the NHS and social care' looking at long COVID, noting a piece of work in Surrey Heartlands;
 - 'advising people on how to protect themselves and other' through communications and guidance;
 - 'pursuing an international approach' managing risks around international travel and working together to help vaccinate the world.

- within Plan A, a key part was Covid-19 safer behaviours and actions it was vital for Surrey to continue to be creative with communications.
- Plan B: was the contingency to be enacted if the NHS comes under unsustainable pressure - there were currently no thresholds to trigger the move to Plan B such as around the number of hospital admissions or deaths; and like Plan A, Plan B was to be enacted nationally, there was no indication of a return to enacting a response at a local or regional level.
- Plan B would be a shift and the four key areas would be:
 - 'face coverings compulsory in some settings';
 - 'powers to introduce vaccine passports';
 - 'encourage people to work from home';
 - 'communicating the need for caution'.
- the Covid-19 Contain Framework should be read in the context of the COVID-19 Response: Autumn and Winter Plan 2021, the Framework sets out the key responsibilities about preventing, managing and containing outbreaks.
- that every upper tier local authority was required to have a Local Outbreak Management Plan (LOMP), it was constantly updated to reflect the Plan and Framework.
- Surrey was aiming to publish version 15 by 10 December 2021 following approval by the Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response Board (EPRR) and circulation to the LOEB; version 15 of the LOMP sought to increase its longevity and take a business as usual approach, so it would look different to previous iterations.

Covid-19 Vaccination Programme

- 2. The Covid Vaccination Programme Director (Surrey Heartlands ICS) noted:
 - that refreshing the data in the written update, she would be presenting the latest published data.
 - phase three of the vaccination programme was dynamic in respect of recommendations for expanding the eligible cohort agreed by the Joint Committee on Vaccination and Immunisation (JCVI).
 - phase three at present was to complete all booster vaccinations for eligible cohorts and to continue to provide the 'evergreen' offer so that anyone can receive their first dose of the vaccine at any time, providing vaccines to immunosuppressed individuals, vaccinating 12-15 year olds and 16-17 year olds.
 - since the written update the JCVI has advised that in addition to those aged over 50 years of age, all adults aged 40-49 years (cohort 10) should be offered a booster vaccination six months after their second dose.
 - since the written update the JCVI has advised that a second dose of the vaccine should be offered to 16-17 year olds, given at an interval of 12 weeks or more from the first dose.
 - that as of 16 November 2021, Surrey Heartlands has delivered 1.64 million vaccinations at sites across its system 14 local vaccination services, 1 mass vaccination centre at Sandown Park Racecourse, 19 community pharmacies and 3 hospital hubs that stand up and stand down whilst there is good coverage, a challenge is to respond to new JCVI in terms of vaccine delivery with different workforce requirements for different cohorts.

- another challenge particularly for the smaller sites, has been to respond
 to the national push to make sure that both walk-in and booked
 appointments are provided the Surrey Heartlands website was
 constantly being refreshed to advertise those sites with walk-ins
 available.
- Surrey Heartlands was delivering a large number of booster vaccinations and take up was high - Surrey Heartlands represented the second highest take up across the South East region.
- as of 8-14 November 2021, 703 first doses were given as part of the evergreen offer - for those age 18 years and above - 50% of those individuals were aged between 18-39, reinforcing the importance of youth engagement as highlighted in item 7 and Surrey Heartlands continued to encourage vaccine take up through different community communication channels.
- of the cohorts eligible for the booster dose there was a 71.5% take up response for cohorts 1 to 9; which was 4.4% above the regional average.
- the national booking system recently allowed people to book their booster vaccination appointment one month prior to their eligible date.
- that initially the local vaccination sites offered different ways for people
 to book a vaccination appointment which was difficult to navigate, now
 that a large majority of the Surrey Heartlands sites have transitioned
 onto the national booking system it was easier for people to book online.
- the ambitious target set nationally to vaccinate eligible care home residents and staff by 11 November 2021, in Surrey Heartlands 98% of care homes had been visited and all their eligible residents had been vaccinated - seven homes were left to visit - all have a booked date to be visited - as on the day of the visit residents were unable to be vaccinated because they were in isolation.
- as of 17 November 2021, just under 18,000 16 to 17 year olds had received their first vaccine dose or an 67.6% uptake, with the aim to reach 75% - communications played a vital role to reinforce the message to take up the vaccine.
- that the guidance regarding vaccinating 12 to 15 year olds was that
 primarily a school-based vaccination service should be offered which
 was a challenge to manage alongside the scheduled flu nasal
 vaccinations, in response the school immunisation services organised a
 programme of activity and visits to each and every school in Surrey to
 deliver the vaccination programme as at 17 November 2021, 14,800
 vaccinations have been given in schools.
- vaccinations through the school-based vaccination programme model had become more flexible in that additional vaccination clinics in community settings could vaccinate 12-15 year olds in order to boost capacity and speed up the delivery.
- the national drive to boost vaccinations, 'the Big Weekend' of vaccinations 27-28 November 2021 to increase uptake of the first and second doses; around ten additional clinics across Surrey Heartlands had been identified and more information and communications on how to via book through them would be released in the next few days.
- the 86% uptake of the booster vaccine of those that are eligible in the immunosuppressed cohort, that uptake reflected 74% of that total eligible population for vaccine take up. Whilst that uptake was high, a pathway across the system was being looked at where people could self-refer into a local Surrey site to receive their booster vaccine, the

- current system was that eligible individuals were sent a letter after being identified through their GP practice.
- 3. The Director of Public Health (SCC) emphasised the need to be agile and responsive, managing the vaccination programme so as not to exacerbate health inequalities highlighting the importance of Surrey's Equality Group for Vaccinations which oversees the vaccinations equality delivery plan and the Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) shared across the South East as an example of good practice which looked at under-served communities and those with the lowest confidence; community engagement and outreach were vital.

Covid-19 Testing

- 4. The External Testing Cell Lead (Surrey Heartlands CCG and SCC) noted:
 - that the symptomatic testing offer was for anyone with symptoms, who could book a PCR test delivered through:
 - roving Mobile Testing Units (MTUs) which move to locations where case rates are highest;
 - Local Testing Sites (LTSs) around Surrey which were fixed and there were currently six across Surrey located in more densely populated areas and were accessible by walking in;
 - regional drive-through testing sites (RTSs): Guildford, Heathrow, Gatwick and Twickenham.
 - that the asymptomatic testing offer was for anyone without symptoms, testing was through rapid lateral flow tests. Since the written update the guidance had changed with the Government encouraging people to take a rapid lateral flow test if they were going to be experiencing high risk that day:
 - spending time in crowded and enclosed spaces; or
 - before visiting people who are at higher risk of severe illness if they get Covid-19.
 - rapid lateral flow tests are available at pharmacies around Surrey for collection, they can be ordered online and were delivered through Agile Testing Units (ATUs).
 - the focus of asymptomatic testing was on Under-Represented Groups (URGs) and Disproportionately Impacted Groups (DIGs) from our community - areas were mapped across the county, encouragement and education on testing was key.
 - as of the week of 25 October 2021 40,000 tests had been delivered, half of those were delivered through the ATUs.
 - that upon receiving a positive rapid lateral flow test, individuals must get a PCR test to confirm the result.
 - referring to a Board member's earlier comment about whether there was
 data around the compliance of rapid lateral flow testing in schools both
 in Surrey and London; she explained that it was not a data set that was
 currently collected nor was the number of rapid lateral flow test kits
 handed out and noted that there was likely more testing going on in
 schools than the number of tests results registered online.
 - the map showing the deployment of testing units in Surrey between 8-14 November 2021.
 - the breakdown of the number of pillar 2 PCR tests by testing site or home testing kit, covering the four weeks up to 12 November 2021 for symptomatic individuals. There were approximately 2.7 times as many tests were taken at MTUs, LTSs and RTSs, then at home.

Local Contact Tracing

- 5. The Test and Trace Manager (SCC) noted:
 - that local contact tracing was vital for breaking the chains of Covid-19 transmission.
 - Surrey's Local Contact Tracing (LCT) team operated the 'Local 24'
 model, whereby if the national NHSE team are unable to contact
 individuals within 24 hours, then those positive case were passed to
 Surrey's LCT team.
 - that the LCT team was managing a high number of cases, despite that
 on average the team was able to complete around 78% of cases that
 were referred; in the last week the team was dealing with an average of
 180 new cases per day.
 - that there were currently twenty-six FTE members in the team with further recruitment underway, with the additional capacity the hope was to revert back to 'Local 4' - a phased process targeting areas with the highest Covid-19 case rates.
 - that between 4-10 November 2021 the LCT team which was averaging a success rate of around 78% saw a dip to 74% as a result of data issues with the national team that week, which affected all local authorities.
 - Surrey's success rate in the South East region was impressive.

High risk settings:

- Education and Early Years Settings
- 6. The Public Health Lead (SCC) noted:
 - that the Council continued to provide ongoing support to schools, early
 years settings and universities throughout the easing of Covid-19
 restrictions and colleagues held twice-weekly educational data meetings
 to review trends and highlight outliers.
 - the Government priority is that education settings deliver face-to-face high-quality education to all children and young people.
 - that the recent focus has been on implementing proactive baseline measures as outlined in the Department for Education's Schools Covid-19 operational guidance and where necessary, implementing additional reactive measures in response to outbreaks, which is outlined in the Contingency Framework.
 - that some measures that were previously routinely in place have now diminished.
 - outlined the baseline routine prevention measures for Surrey's education and early years settings and the additional temporary measures that following consultation, could be brought in during the event of an outbreak.
 - that students and education staff who are close contacts of a positive case are exempt from the requirement to isolate if they are fully vaccinated or under the age of 18 years and six months; those contacts are strongly encouraged to have a PCR test.
 - that schools continue to promote the twice weekly symptom-free rapid lateral flow testing for all of those eligible.
 - that Surrey's universities have been supported with the vaccination process in relation to national guidance, FAQs and information on

finding the nearest vaccination centre; the University of Surrey and Royal Holloway, University of London ran successful pop-up vaccination sites on their campuses during term return.

- Care Homes

- 7. The Senior Public Health Lead (SCC) noted:
 - that the new regulations came into force on 11 November 2021 which required any staff or any persons deployed in care homes to be fully vaccinated unless exempt.
 - that the Public Health team (SCC) is working closely with care homes to make sure that they understand the operational guidance and to increase the vaccination uptake, training had also been provided.
 - there had been targeted interventions through Surrey Minority Ethnic Forum (SMEF) and GP led conversations to those staff who were vaccine hesitant.
 - for staff in care homes self-isolation exemptions are in place, if identified as a close contact they must be asymptomatic, following the prescribed testing routes and adhere to Infection Prevention Control (IPC) measures in place.
 - that the provision of free Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) to health and social care providers has been extended until March 2022.
 - that the Public Health team (SCC) was continuing to offer IPC training.
 - that the Care Homes COVID-19 Outbreak Oversight Group continue to meet weekly, this week there were zero outbreaks in care homes.
 - that care homes were supported through ensuring that they had business continuity policies in place including a plan for surge capacity.
 - that a process had been set up for information sharing with the Care Quality Commission (CQC).
 - the Public Health team (SCC) when required provided support on managing hospital discharges.
 - the publication of the Adult social care: COVID-19 winter plan 2020 to 2021 which outlined the national support available for the care sector and the actions for local authorities, the NHS and providers.
- 8. The Chief Executive Officer (Surrey Care Association):
 - welcomed the significant support to care homes provided by the Council
 and the Surrey Heartlands CCG, however some challenges remained
 including the IPC measures that relatives visiting loved ones have to go
 through such as undertaking a rapid lateral flow test and wearing PPE,
 in contrast with the restrictions eased in the community; she
 emphasised the need to reinforce the messaging to keep loved ones
 safe in care homes.
 - that as a result of the new regulations which came into force on the 11
 November, some providers found that some staff decided to leave and a
 challenge encountered was around visiting professionals forgetting to
 bring the evidence needed of their own vaccination status if visiting a
 care home.
 - In response, the Senior Public Health Lead (SCC) noted that the Public Health team (SCC) was aware of the issue around visiting professionals and was working with the Surrey Heartlands CCG to release a communications piece to primary care and community professionals to highlight that evidence of their vaccination status was needed when visiting care homes.

- looked forward to receiving the next tranche of IPC funding from the Council.
- welcomed the update that there were no outbreaks in care homes this week, which was a testament to the joint working underway.

Variants of Concern

- 9. The Senior Public Health Lead (SCC) noted:
 - that there were four current Variants of Concern (VOCs) and nine Variants Under Investigation (VUIs).
 - the Delta variant was predominantly the main variant in England and the Delta sublineage AY.4.2 accounts for a slowly increasing proportion of cases in the UK; vaccine effective analysis did not suggest a significant reduction in vaccine effectiveness concerning that sublineage.
 - national data and Surrey data on the variants continued to be reviewed.

Community (COVID) Champions

- 10. The Project Support Officer (SCC) noted:
 - that ten of the eleven borough and district councils now run Community Champion schemes - with Woking recently joining, Tandridge remained outstanding.
 - that there were over 250 Community Champions across Surrey.
 - that over 45 Covid-19 briefings had been delivered since November 2020.
 - that a Community Champions county-wide webinar had been established at met in October; the next meeting was scheduled for 15 December 2021.
 - that key messages around Covid-19 such as testing, vaccinations and safe behaviours continued to be shared, as well as on health and wellbeing.
 - an example of a recent briefing shared with Community Champions was highlighted, it was written in Plain English to be disseminated into communities via social media or traditional methods of communication.
 - that community voice was crucial, feedback from the Community Champions and their communities was gathered and actions were taken.
 - quotes from Community Champions were highlighted.
 - the continuity plan with six specific outcomes to be achieved during the next year:
 - focus on the delivery of the COVID-19 Response: Autumn and Winter Plan 2021/2022.
 - fortnightly (COVID-19) briefings.
 - disseminate key messages for the Community Champions to cascade among their networks.
 - bi-monthly countywide webinars for the Community Champions.
 - offer new development opportunities for Champions training.
 - exploring opportunities to widen the network of Champions working with external partners such as Central Surrey Voluntary
 Action, Surrey Coalition of Disabled People and internal partners
 such as Active Surrey who would be presenting at the next
 webinar.

11. The Chairman welcomed the presentation and would look to see what she could do to help get Tandridge District Council on board with the Community (COVID) Champions scheme.

RESOLVED:

The Board:

- 1. Noted the report.
- 2. Would continue to provide political oversight of local delivery of the Local Outbreak Management Plan.
- 3. Would continue to lead the engagement with local communities and be the public face of the local response.
- 4. Members would ensure appropriate information on the programme and on COVID-19 in Surrey is cascaded within their own organisations and areas of influence.

Actions/further information to be provided:

1. The Chairman will look to see what she can do to help get Tandridge District Council on board with the Community (COVID) Champions scheme.

40/21 SURREY LOEB UPDATED TERMS OF REFERENCE [Item 9]

Witnesses:

Amelia Christopher - Committee Manager, Surrey County Council

Key points raised in the discussion:

- 1. The Committee Manager (SCC) noted:
 - that since the last version of the LOEB's terms of reference agreed at the Board's June meeting, the tracked changes were shown on the proposed November version of the terms of reference.
 - the following two additional proposed changes to the November terms of reference, in light of the LOEB not being a formal decision-making committee so it could continue to meet virtually:
 - 10.1 Meetings will be held every two months in public. In line with <u>best</u>
 <u>practice</u> statutory requirements, notice and agendas for public
 meetings will be published 5 clear working days before the meeting. The
 frequency of the meetings will be kept under review.
 - 10.3 Meetings will <u>usually</u> be held in <u>person usually at Woodhatch</u>
 Place, Reigate or virtually if informal. (<u>with the option to meet in person at Woodhatch Place, Reigate.)
 </u>
- The Chairman welcomed the proposals, particularly the ability to continue to hold the LOEB virtually, with the option to meet in person at Woodhatch Place.

RESOLVED:

1. The LOEB agreed the updated Terms of Reference (Annex 1).

Actions/further information to be provided:

None.

41/21 DATE OF NEXT MEETING [Item 10]

Meeting ended at: 3.46 pm

The date of the next meeting was noted as 16 February 2022 - provisional date - the Committee Manager (SCC) would confirm 2022 dates as soon as possible.

		Chairman	